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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good afternoon.

          3  I'm Council Member Jim Gennaro, Chair of the New

          4  York City Committee on Environmental Protection. I'd

          5  like to welcome you to this hearing.

          6                 Today the Committee will hear

          7  testimony on two topics that while focusing on the

          8  City's water supply pertain to very different issues

          9  concerning that supply.

         10                 The City's Administrative Code has a

         11  procedure by which sewer mains that are built as

         12  part of a private development project become City

         13  property eventually. No such system may be built

         14  without a permit from the Commissioner of DEP, who

         15  wants to approve plans for a portion of a project.

         16                 This is done in order to ensure

         17  uniformity in the design and construction of sewer

         18  mains.

         19                 The City, however, has not had a

         20  formal authority over the design and construction of

         21  private water mains, that would enable it to make

         22  sure that the safe and continuous supply of water to

         23  the citizens of the City are served by those water

         24  mains.

         25                 Intro. No. 163 seeks to address this
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          2  lack of formal authority by setting forth

          3  requirements and conditions for private water main

          4  construction, and by prohibiting the opening of any

          5  street, boring of a pipe or connecting with a water

          6  main or pipe for water supply purposes, except under

          7  the direction of the DEP Commissioner.

          8                 Other than provisions of Intro. 163,

          9  this water mains would also become the property of

         10  the City, thereby guaranteeing and maintaining the

         11  integrity of the City's sewer and water supply

         12  systems. That's the first part of the hearing.

         13                 The second part, we're going to be

         14  looking at Resolution Number 575, which calls upon

         15  the State Legislature to amend the public health law

         16  to include higher penalties for the enforcement of

         17  New York City's watershed rules and regulations.

         18                 These regulations comprise the

         19  regulatory mechanism through which New York City's

         20  drinking water supply and its sources are protected

         21  from pollution and degradation.

         22                 New York City's drinking water supply

         23  has a reputation of being one of the most pristine

         24  public supplies in the world. Eight million of New

         25  York City's residents, a million suburbanites and
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          2  countless visitors relying on this crucial natural

          3  resource.

          4                 At present, the State public health

          5  law pursuant to which the watershed rules and

          6  regulations are enforced, derives that a person in

          7  violation of the regulations, may be reliable for a

          8  maximum fine of only $200 and up to one year in

          9  prison.

         10                 Such a penalty is grossly in adequate

         11  to create compliance with the watershed rules and

         12  regulations, and makes a penalty levy for any

         13  infraction of the regulations an inconsequential

         14  cost of doing business.

         15                 Of course, you know, one year in jail

         16  is no joke, but I think they're really talking more

         17  about the $200 part, which is probably all that

         18  would ever be imposed.

         19                 In addition, under the public health

         20  law, injunctive relief and the assessment of a

         21  penalty may only be sought subsequent to the service

         22  of a notice of violation upon the alleged violator

         23  and the failure to comply within five days of such

         24  service.

         25                 The system allows for a continued
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          2  damage to our water supply without the imposition of

          3  any serious consequences, as long as the violating

          4  behavior is abated within that five-day period.

          5                 As such, the City's enforcement

          6  authority is undermined, the City does not possess

          7  the necessary tools with which to adequately protect

          8  the watershed.

          9                 Finally, the effectiveness of the

         10  City's watershed rules and regulations is one

         11  element of a comprehensive watershed protection plan

         12  that is necessary in order to avoid filtration of

         13  the Catskill Delaware water supply.

         14                 Filtration of the supply would result

         15  in a cost of billions of dollars to the City. Over

         16  the years, this Committee has held numerous hearings

         17  on the issue of protecting the City's drinking

         18  water, and it will continue to be a forum for

         19  discussion about this very important topic.

         20                 It is clear that the enforcement

         21  provisions of the watershed rules and regulations

         22  should be greatly strengthened to reflect the

         23  gravity of watershed protection.

         24                 As such, Reso 575 is the latest

         25  effort by this Committee to help ensure that the
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          2  renown quality of the City's water supply is

          3  maintained.

          4                 So, we're going to be calling our

          5  first witnesses from the Department of Environmental

          6  Protection, but first I'd like to recognize the

          7  presence of Council Member Koppell from the Bronx,

          8  Council Member Serrano also of the Bronx, and

          9  they're both members of the Committee and I thank

         10  them for their presence here today.

         11                 We will be joined at time to time

         12  with other members of the Committee.

         13                 So, we have the folks from DEP who

         14  are going to be testifying on Intro. No. 163, the

         15  Private Watermain Bill, which is the Mayor's bill,

         16  so we'd like to hear their views on it, and I know

         17  we have Mark Lanagan and Doug Greeley, I don't know

         18  the other gentlemen, but I guess I would ask Doug to

         19  introduce the panel in full. After you submit to our

         20  ritual swearing in, which you all know the drill,

         21  I'll ask Donna to provide the oath and after that

         22  you can state your name for the record, those on

         23  your panel, and we'd be welcome to hear your

         24  testimony.

         25                 Donna.
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          3  right hand.

          4                 In the testimony that you're about to

          5  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          6  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          7                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          8                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Doug, if you can

         10  state your name and those on your panel for the

         11  record, and proceed with your testimony.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Good

         13  afternoon, Mr. Chairman and members of the

         14  Committee. My name is Douglas Greeley. I'm Deputy

         15  Commissioner for DEP's Water and Sewer Operations.

         16                 I am joined by Judah Prero, Assistant

         17  Counsel at DEP, as well as Mark Lanaghan, who is the

         18  Director of Intergovernmental Affairs.

         19                 On behalf of Commissioner Ward, I'd

         20  like to thank you for this opportunity to present

         21  our testimony in support of Intro. No. 163, which is

         22  sponsored by Council Member Gennaro.

         23                 Since the subject of Intro. 163 is

         24  related to one of my responsibilities, Commissioner

         25  Ward asked me to represent them at the hearing.
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          2                 I appreciate the Committee's interest

          3  in this legislation, and I am hopeful that the

          4  Committee will consider it favorably after a full

          5  public hearing process.

          6                 The purpose of my testimony this

          7  afternoon is to summarize the background and purpose

          8  of the legislation.

          9                 In the course of doing that, I hope

         10  to communicate why we think the legislation will

         11  benefit the system of potable water delivery in New

         12  York City and to improve coordination with the

         13  private development industry.

         14                 And let me state for the record, I

         15  hate reading from text, but there are a number of

         16  thoughts that I would normally not be able to

         17  remember, so we have to read it.

         18                 Although DEP often testifies before

         19  this Committee with the benefit of a variety of

         20  charts, grafts, maps and power point presentations,

         21  the agenda for this hearing did not lend itself to

         22  multi-media, and we have to proceed with the written

         23  testimony.

         24                 The need for Intro. 163 arises from

         25  the fact that there were areas of the City that are
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          2  not yet served by the water and sewer systems

          3  operated by DEP.

          4                 The purpose of the legislation is, to

          5  put it most simply, to give DEP the authority to

          6  issue regulations that will govern the construction

          7  of water mains which are built by private developers

          8  who are extending the public water main system to a

          9  project being built in an area of the City not yet

         10  served by DEP water supply system.

         11                 Although we are fortunate to have a

         12  very active capital program to improve and extend

         13  service, nonetheless, there are parts of the City

         14  where housing construction and other development has

         15  outpaced the City's program to extend its water and

         16  sewer infrastructure.

         17                 These areas are most notably but not

         18  exclusively in Staten Island. There are cases in

         19  Queens and the Bronx and even conceivably Brooklyn

         20  where this might arise in the future.

         21                 In these areas, a private developer

         22  may propose to connect their project to the nearest

         23  water and sewer mains by constructing at their own

         24  expense the water and sewer infrastructure in mapped

         25  City streets.
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          2                 These water and sewer pipes are

          3  referred to by City engineers and plant examiners as

          4  private watermains or private sewers. They differ

          5  from the pipes within a large development project,

          6  like Co-op City or Stuyvesant Town, which provide

          7  water and sewer service between buildings inside

          8  private property.

          9                 These pipes are considered by City

         10  engineers as internal plumbing and would not be

         11  affected by this legislation.

         12                 Until the 1990s, the City did not

         13  have in place regulations that codified the City's

         14  legal engineering and construction requirements

         15  applicable to either private water mains or private

         16  sewers.

         17                 The absence of codified requirements

         18  was a concern to DEP and to the development

         19  industry, although for the most part the

         20  construction of private water mains and sewers was

         21  not an area of huge conflict between the City and

         22  the regulated community.

         23                 Nonetheless, to create clearer

         24  enforceable requirements and to eliminate the

         25  possibility of misinterpretation, in the 1990s, DEP
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          2  in consultation with representative of engineering

          3  firms, developers, architects and plumbers, created

          4  a set of rules governing the construction of private

          5  sewer mains.

          6                 In 1999, under the authority of an

          7  administrative code provision dating back to 1963,

          8  DEP promulgated a set of rules governing private

          9  sewer mains.

         10                 They are now Chapter 23 of Title 15

         11  of the rules compilation of the City of New York,

         12  normally known as RCNY.

         13                 Upon completion of the private sewer

         14  regulations, DEP staff began a process again in

         15  consultations with representatives of the regulated

         16  industry that led to the creation of a set of draft

         17  rules to govern the construction of private water

         18  mains.

         19                 Like the earlier rules governing the

         20  construction of private sewers, the draft private

         21  watermain rules codify definition standards,

         22  insurance and bonding requirements, plan approval,

         23  processes and construction procedures.

         24                 I have a copy of these draft rules

         25  which I would like to leave with you, since it will
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          2  give the Committee a more detailed idea of the

          3  purpose of Intro. 163.

          4                 Unlike the private sewer main rules,

          5  water main rules has never been promulgated.

          6                 The reason, as the Corporation

          7  Counsel determined, that the Administrative Code

          8  provisions, Section 24-507 and 24-508, which

          9  authorized the creation of the private sewer main

         10  rules, did not grant similar authority in the area

         11  of private watermains.

         12                 Rather than seek to promulgate the

         13  private watermain rules under general authority

         14  given to the Commissioner of DEP in the Charter or

         15  the Administrative Code, DEP and Corp Counsel

         16  drafted legislation which now appears before you as

         17  Intro. 163.

         18                 If this legislation is enacted, DEP

         19  will then have the authority to promulgate the draft

         20  watermain rules.

         21                 Although these rules have become

         22  industry practice to a significant degree, in the

         23  meantime obviously the rules can't be enforced and

         24  not binding upon any party until and unless

         25  authorizing legislation, such as Intro. 163 is
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          2  enacted.

          3                 Although I will not go into the

          4  legislation provision by provision in my prepared

          5  remarks, I'd like to draw your attention to one

          6  feature of the bill that might require some

          7  explanation.

          8                 The legislation would create an

          9  entirely new section in the Administrative Code,

         10  Section 24-309.1. That new section contains a

         11  variety of provisions to duplicate provisions in the

         12  sections of the Administrative Code, once again,

         13  dating to 1963 that authorized the promulgation of

         14  the private sewer main regulations.

         15                 The last provision of the new section

         16  is paragragh G, and it provides that the watermain

         17  remains the private property of the parties who pay

         18  for its construction, until one of two events

         19  happens: Either seven years elapses or the property

         20  owners regarding the main have developed to the

         21  point where the watermain is fully paid for.

         22                 After either of those events occurs,

         23  the ownership of the watermain will then vest with

         24  the City.

         25                 The vesting procedure described in
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          2  Section 24-309.1G mirrors the existing

          3  administrative code provision applicable to private

          4  sewer mains.

          5                 This procedure has been followed at

          6  least since 1963 when the Administrative Code was

          7  amended to allow the City to take title to private

          8  sewer mains after seven years, or when its

          9  construction has been paid for, which ever came

         10  earlier.

         11                 Authorizing the City to take

         12  ownership of private sewers and watermains after

         13  seven years, this part of a long-term City policy

         14  not to permit the creation of private watermain or

         15  sewer systems in the public streets.

         16                 After allowing an interval of seven

         17  years before the City takes title to a private water

         18  or sewer main, gives the builder time to recoup the

         19  costs of constructing this infrastructure.

         20                 By recreating Intro. 63, vesting

         21  procedures created for the private sewer main, DEP

         22  is not creating new policy, but just expanding

         23  existing policy to apply to private watermains.

         24                 Unless Intro. 163 is enacted and the

         25  draft private watermain regulations are promulgated,
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          2  there is no codified City policy with respect to the

          3  construction of private watermains.

          4                 In the absence of the codified

          5  policy, builders and developers have certain

          6  discretion with respect to constructing extensions

          7  of the City's potable water system.

          8                 Although builders and developers

          9  generally follow DEP guidance when it comes to

         10  private watermains, from my standpoint it is clearly

         11  undesirable for this activity to remain unregulated.

         12                 Therefore, I hope that the Committee

         13  will consider this legislation favorably.

         14                 And behalf of myself and Commissioner

         15  Ward, I'd like to thank you for the opportunity to

         16  present testimony.

         17                 If you have any questions, we'd be

         18  happy to answer.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         20                 Is there anyone else on the panel

         21  that wishes to supplement Commissioner Greeley's

         22  testimony?

         23                 Let me just mention I have a few

         24  thoughts regarding, or a few comments regarding your

         25  statement.
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          2                 With regard to -- I mean, I would

          3  imagine as you mentioned it would be in Staten

          4  Island where this happens mostly, but you indicated

          5  there are other areas of the City where this

          6  happens? In Queens? Just out of curiosity, where

          7  might those areas be?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: We've

          9  seen the effect of some of this historically in

         10  Garretson Beach, Manhattan Beach, even in the

         11  Jamaica area where the demand for housing and

         12  development far outstrip the City's ability to

         13  provide the infrastructure, and there are a number

         14  of undersized sewers that became maintenance

         15  problems, and they need to be replaced.

         16                 Staten Island primarily, yes, but we

         17  have seen areas, conceivably this could be a problem

         18  as the Rockaway development proceeds.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         20                 And, so, what has been sort of taking

         21  place out there? I mean obviously most of the

         22  builders seem to be in some compliance with what

         23  your protocols are and so on, but the fear is that

         24  if left unregulated, there are problems that could

         25  rise. I mean, could you walk us through some of the
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          2  problems you've had with regard to builders who

          3  don't build these things up to specification, or

          4  what have you run into? I guess it's kind of,

          5  precautionary is really why we're doing it, but

          6  obviously there's been experience on the part of the

          7  Department as to what crises you face as a result of

          8  this lapse in the regulatory authority.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Okay, I

         10  have a couple of end-point benefits that I believe

         11  is what you're looking for.

         12                 We've noticed in the past a developer

         13  will build a row of townhouses and possibly just

         14  install a two-inch main for water supply to the

         15  homes, and there is no fire protection. You know, he

         16  might say that there's a fire hydrant on the nearest

         17  City street, but it might be something where the

         18  fire hydrants are too far away, according to our

         19  policies and specs, so what we are doing is

         20  specifying materials, one, they're DEP standard

         21  materials according to best construction practice;

         22  two, we're mandating certain controls where to put

         23  water valves.

         24                 Three, we're specifying a level of

         25  fire protection, which is consistent to what New
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          2  York City has.

          3                 It also allows us to assume

          4  maintenance and repair responsibility after a

          5  certain amount of time, it eliminates confusion in

          6  the event that there's a problem, and one of the

          7  other benefits to the proposed legislation is that

          8  developers will be providing cost estimates to us so

          9  that even though they're in the process of recouping

         10  costs for this infrastructure, there is a back stop

         11  to the people that might want to come and hook up to

         12  these private mains, insofar as we can arbitrate

         13  what the actual hook-up costs would be to them as

         14  they follow on from the original development.

         15                 The other thing, too, is it's our

         16  intent to legislate into the practice that there is

         17  a comprehensive water and sewer infrastructure of as

         18  you build out pipes have to be of a certain size in

         19  order to integrate into the rest of the system.

         20                 We would like to be able to plan this

         21  so that if a 12-inch main is needed for the service

         22  area, once the City assumes responsibility for the

         23  main, it just integrates right into the system, it

         24  does not have to be replaced.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I was hoping to
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          2  hear from some of the private developers that would

          3  actually be operating under whatever, you know,

          4  Intro. 163 were it to be enacted, and then would

          5  operate under those rules. I mean, none have come

          6  forward, notwithstanding the fact that they've been

          7  reached out to, makes me wonder how much opposition

          8  it is in their community. I don't want to speak for

          9  them, but I would tend to think that they had a big

         10  opposition to what we're contemplating here today.

         11  They'd be here telling us that presumably, you know,

         12  they're not here, and, so, I'm almost to take it in

         13  sort of tacit support for what what we're

         14  contemplating here today, for what we're

         15  contemplating here today, because I'm sure if they

         16  were opposed to it, they're over here telling us,

         17  but one question that I have apropos to that is the

         18  extent to which private developers, in building

         19  these mains, you know, might feel that they were

         20  overspecing or subsidizing other developments that

         21  might be feeding into these private watermains.

         22  Because they may say, look, we only need X, Y, Z

         23  signs or whatever, but you want us to sort of pay

         24  for other development that's going to come after us

         25  that are going to feed into the main, and that's
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          2  where the part of your testimony that talks about

          3  recouping payment for this, what would be the

          4  mechanism by which, "allowing an interval of seven

          5  years before the City takes title to a private water

          6  or sewer main gives the builder time to re-coup the

          7  costs of constructing the private water or sewer

          8  main." I mean, so they put the construction in and

          9  they re-coup it by, I guess selling their

         10  development products and whatever, right? They would

         11  sell the homes.

         12                 I mean, is that what gives them the

         13  ability to re-coup the cost? So if a developer comes

         14  into Staten Island, he's going to build ten homes on

         15  the end of a cul-de-sac and the total cost of him

         16  building these homes and doing this private, you

         17  know, water and sewer infrastructure is X and that

         18  builder recoups the cost of the private watermain by

         19  selling the homes that they're building? Is that how

         20  they do that?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

         22  part of it. If the homes are part of his particular

         23  development, there might be instances where a

         24  plumber would be building on a piece of property

         25  that he had an interest in that is somewhat away
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          2  from the system and that there is other property

          3  between the City system and his development, and if

          4  people then said, well, gees, we've got watermains

          5  and sewers passing our property, now we want to

          6  develop, we'll look into the pipes that he just put

          7  in, it gives him time to get all of those people to

          8  vie into what he has gone and done for himself, if

          9  that is the particular case.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How does that

         11  work? I'm a private developer and I want to put

         12  something, you know, 100 yards down the road or

         13  something, and I go and do that, and so there are

         14  other developments or other entities that want to

         15  tap into the pipe that I just put down, do I charge

         16  them for that? I just want to understand the

         17  mechanism of how that works.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

         19  correct. He furnishes to us all of his engineering

         20  permit acquisition and construction costs, and as

         21  people want to develop they proportion the costs out

         22  possibly by the frontage of the property that they

         23  have an interest in or the number of homes. But the

         24  developer actually would meet with these other

         25  individuals and say it cost me X number of dollars
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          2  to build this infrastructure, and if you want to

          3  hook up, you have to pay into that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This is kind of

          5  interesting. I mean, would that allow developers to

          6  sort of profiteer off this construction that was

          7  originally put in to kind of connect A to B but

          8  these other entities want to come in; you know, what

          9  regulates the interaction between that private

         10  developer that's putting the resource in the street

         11  and those that want to hook up to it, and would 163

         12  sort of speak to that, I guess is my question?

         13  Because it seems that would provide an opportunity

         14  for the developer to do a little profiteering off

         15  the installation.

         16                 It seems like the kind of question

         17  that Oliver Koppell could better formulate than I

         18  could, you know what I mean? I'm like getting a

         19  sense of that.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Intro.

         21  163 is intended to allow the developer to recoup his

         22  costs only. As I said before, all of these costs are

         23  on file with the City and if any potential secondary

         24  developers feel that they're being unfairly treated,

         25  we have that information and we will pretty much
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          2  backstop them.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And that will be

          4  covered by 163?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

          6  correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But it's not

          8  covered now?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

         10  correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So if somebody

         12  wanted to profiteer, then this set-up as it exists

         13  now, sort of this Wild West kind of structure that

         14  we're sort of operating in, which I think you

         15  rightly want to correct.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Quite

         17  so.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Interesting.

         19                 I recognize Council Member Koppell,

         20  who has a question.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: These notice

         22  provisions may be in existing law, but they seem

         23  very short to me. For instance, well, the notice,

         24  the three-days notice to the Department of

         25  Transportation and the President of the Borough, the
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          2  Borough President still has to give the permission

          3  for the project if it's related to or close to a

          4  landmark; is that right?

          5                 It's on page three and four. It says

          6  3508 provide a person seeking to do construction

          7  where the construction affects excavations or

          8  removals of landmarks must receive a permit from the

          9  President of the Borough in which the landmark is

         10  situated.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: That

         12  provision is --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mark, if you

         14  could just state your name for the record?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: Mark

         16  Lanaghan, Assistant Commissioner, New York City

         17  Department of Environmental Protection.

         18                 As you surmized that provision,

         19  however awkward or archaic, was deliberately put in

         20  so that it mimicked the provisions in the

         21  Administrative Code that authorizes the City to

         22  regulate the construction of private sewer mains.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But first of

         24  all, in thinking about it, you know, I apologize but

         25  I'm new to this, in thinking about it, and I have no
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          2  problem with giving notice to the Borough President,

          3  but really the Landmarks Commission ought to be the

          4  one to get the notice. And maybe, who knows, maybe

          5  that provision is old and before we even had a

          6  Landmarks Commission. I don't even know when we even

          7  got a Landmarks Commission, but certainly the

          8  Landmarks Commission ought to be informed if you're

          9  going to interfere with a landmark, in addition to

         10  the Borough President. I have no problem in

         11  notifying the Borough President.

         12                 And I also, if the three-days notice

         13  means that you have to give three days' notice and

         14  nobody does anything, you can go ahead, that's too

         15  short. I mean, three days is, you know, it's much

         16  too short.

         17                 Now, there could be emergency reasons

         18  where you have an emergency contract where you might

         19  want to have only three days or even less, but in a

         20  general matter, three days is just too short, in my

         21  opinion. And you know, the Committee might want to

         22  look at that.

         23                 And then if you look at the next

         24  paragraph, it also deals with notice provisions.

         25  Here there is notice to utilities, and then there's
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          2  a requirement that they've got to remove or replace

          3  their pipes, mains and conduits and so on, again,

          4  all of that is fine, but one day notice, 24 hours

          5  notice again is too short. I can't imagine that

          6  anybody can do anything with one day's notice.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN:

          8  Again that is the same notice provision that's

          9  authorized in the section of the Administrative Code

         10  that regulates private, the construction of private

         11  sewers.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes. But

         13  maybe you should take a look at it.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER LANAGHAN: I'd

         15  be happy to.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: These are

         17  apparently provisions that were written, I don't

         18  know, maybe they did things quicker in the old days,

         19  but these days I don't think you can expect anybody

         20  to do anything in one day.

         21                 The other point, though, on the

         22  notice issue, and I realize that it may also be

         23  again something that's already in the law with

         24  respect to sewers, but I think it would be helpful

         25  if notice of these projects were given to the local
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          2  community board.

          3                 I'm not saying to the local

          4  Councilperson, I don't want to have more work, but

          5  maybe to the local Councilperson, but certainly to

          6  the local community board. Because these projects

          7  can sometimes be quite disruptive. They don't always

          8  have to be but sometimes they can be disruptive,

          9  sewer and water projects, digging up streets and

         10  such. And I think if the law, even if the law

         11  doesn't provide that now with sewers, I think

         12  providing notice to the local community board is a

         13  good idea.

         14                 So, I realize that that provides an

         15  additional burden but it would be my recommendation

         16  if we're looking at these regulations to at least

         17  consider that, if not to do it.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:

         19  Councilman, your comments are entirely apropos. I

         20  become aware, when you talk about utility notice, we

         21  are required to give them a minimum with two days to

         22  mark out their facilities, before anybody is to

         23  start excavating.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's
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          2  part of the State Industrial Code Rule Number 52.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: How many

          4  days?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: They

          6  have two days to mark out their facilities before a

          7  contractor starts to work, and I bring that up

          8  because I just wanted to amplify your comments. But

          9  perhaps this bill will have to be modified to

         10  increase the amount of time.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes. I think

         12  you should consider these notice requirements in

         13  light of practicalities.

         14                 I mean, frankly I don't think anybody

         15  can do anything in a day or two these days, but you

         16  know, I'm not out there in the field. But I do think

         17  notice to the community board would be useful.

         18                 I mean, we do have this problem in

         19  the City of New York of one hand not knowing what

         20  the other hand is doing, and you know, I mean I can

         21  imagine a lot of instances where notice to the

         22  community board might produce some interesting

         23  information, you know, just to start their street

         24  fair that day or something like that.

         25                 So, I would commend you're looking at
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          2  these notice requirements. After all we'll look at

          3  the law only once every 40 years, we might as well

          4  analyze it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Duly noted. I

          6  thank Council Member Koppell for those helpful

          7  recommendations, which I endorse as well. So, it was

          8  the notice of Boards, notice to local Council

          9  members, and the landmarks, the Landmarks Commission

         10  piece as well.

         11                 We're getting stuff done here today.

         12  That's good.

         13                 Okay, so like I said I had hoped that

         14  there would be people here from the regulated

         15  community, so-to-speak, to sort of speak on their

         16  behalf, but they I guess have some level of comfort

         17  with what we're doing today, at least that's the

         18  only thing that I can assume, because I did have

         19  some conversations with some folks myself who came

         20  to me and saw me at events and this and that and

         21  said we heard about the bill and we may come, we're

         22  thinking about it, so it's not like they didn't

         23  know. But out here they haven't sent their

         24  representative.

         25                 So, that will I guess conclude, at
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          2  least for now, my focus on Intro. 163, but as long

          3  as I have you all sitting up there, I think I'm just

          4  going to take your, just one or two points on the

          5  resolution that's before us today, and excuse me

          6  while I shuffle papers here a little bit.

          7                 Reso 575, which would call for higher

          8  penalties for those who violate the watershed

          9  regulations. I know that the Bloomberg

         10  Administration has a policy of putting forth public

         11  testimony on Council resolutions, but that doesn't

         12  stop us from talking about the issue, you know, and

         13  the issue is that as it exists now there seems to be

         14  sort of minimal opportunity to bring people, or

         15  limited means by which we can bring people in line

         16  with the watershed regulations being that the fines

         17  and penalties are so low, and I know that this is

         18  something with the Watershed Partnership and

         19  Protection Council has cited in one of their recent

         20  works, they felt the need to increase this. EPA has

         21  come on board and supported it, and Jim Tierney, who

         22  is the watershed IG is also in line with this

         23  thinking, so we sent the letter, as did the EPA.

         24                 We do have some opposition about the

         25  Coalition of Watershed Towns, as expressed
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          2  opposition in writing to the attempt to increase the

          3  penalties, but I guess is this something that DEP

          4  perceives as an issue? Does DEP believe that the

          5  current structure, or the current penalty structure

          6  in place now, which has been there for I don't know

          7  how many decades, some, you know, real long period

          8  of time is sufficient to keeping people in line with

          9  what they should be doing vis-a-vis the watershed

         10  regulations.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: I was

         12  speaking to Mark Hoffer, our General Counsel,

         13  earlier this week, about setting up a meeting to

         14  discuss our recommendations for changes in the

         15  public health law, and although we haven't had a

         16  lengthy discussion about our vision for a penalty

         17  increase, he reminded me of the fact that we issued

         18  somewhere between 2,500 and 3,000 notices of

         19  violation or notices of warning under the watershed

         20  regs.

         21                 And the penalty provision hasn't been

         22  a bigger problem because in most cases, the penalty

         23  is not the reason why we're issuing the violation.

         24  It's the behavior or the action. And we have been

         25  often very successful even with the minimal penalty
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          2  in encouraging persons to change their behavior and

          3  to conform to the regulations.

          4                 All that said, it's a ridiculous

          5  amount. It's in the public health law. Obviously

          6  changing the public health law requires the

          7  cooperation of the Legislature and the stakeholders

          8  in the MOA will have a voice in that, the Coalition

          9  of Watershed Towns. But it was very encouraging to

         10  Mark Hoffer and other people at DEP that the

         11  Watershed Protection and Partnership Council was

         12  willing to take the public position that they did.

         13                 Mark also reminded me that the

         14  Environmental Conservation Law, which only DEP --

         15  the watershed rules and regs can be enforced by DEP

         16  employees, as well as State Health employees, and

         17  although I have an information request from your

         18  Council, a lengthy one, which I've discussed

         19  responding with to the Mayor's Office, although I've

         20  not prepared to respond to it, it's quite detailed

         21  today, obviously. Most of the violations, notices of

         22  violation and warning under the watershed regs are

         23  issued by DEP staff, and the Environmental

         24  Conservation Law penalties, which carry a maximum of

         25  25,000, can only be issued by either DEC police or
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          2  DEP police.

          3                 So, there's different, there's

          4  different penalties in state law for different

          5  actions that threaten the integrity of the water

          6  supply and the streams and rivers that lead into our

          7  reservoirs. So that's at least one model that we can

          8  look to.

          9                 The process that will lead to changes

         10  in public health law, obviously the Legislature has

         11  to approve it. But we would try to seek some type of

         12  consensus with the other stakeholders, and if we

         13  didn't, it might mean that the process wasn't going

         14  to be fruitful in the end.

         15                 So, although I'm not able to, among

         16  other things answer all the questions provided by

         17  your counsel, I'm also not able to give you a target

         18  or an amount that is going to be the City's goal, in

         19  terms of changing that provision, that penalty

         20  provision.

         21                 But I look forward to discussing it

         22  with all the various stakeholders, and I'm sure that

         23  Commissioner Ward will want to make sure that you're

         24  aware of a City proposal when we reach the consensus

         25  on it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          3  you. Thank you, Commissioner, and I appreciate your

          4  comments and the sentiment of Mark Hoffer, whom I

          5  have a lot of respect for and his thoughts seem to

          6  be consistent with Commissioner Ward's own

          7  statement. I'm reading from the record of our

          8  hearing from June 14th on the FAD during which

          9  Commissioner Ward indicated that the penalty of $200

         10  is clearly low. That was his statement. And he

         11  indicated that the State Department of Health is

         12  willing to look at and reexamine what new fines

         13  schedule might be, and I will make a commitment that

         14  you and we will continue that discussion and find

         15  out what new fine level could be for watershed

         16  violation, so it seems that, you know, based on his

         17  testimony from the 14th, and based upon what you've

         18  stated here today, seems like we're going in the

         19  right direction to put this on the table and see if

         20  we can move it forward.

         21                 So, thank you. Thank you for that,

         22  and once again I recognize Council Member Koppell

         23  has a question.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes, well,

         25  it's more in nature of a statement.
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          2                 I can't let this opportunity pass

          3  without mentioning, first of all, I obviously

          4  strongly support the resolution and the idea of

          5  increased penalties, because it's part of what, as

          6  you know, I recommend as an alternative to

          7  filtration for the Croton Watershed, and there was a

          8  mix-up actually with a meeting that we were going to

          9  have with Commissioner Ward I thought today. It's

         10  been on my schedule for today for two weeks, I

         11  understand it's for tomorrow, and we're going to

         12  reschedule it.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Yes, I

         14  apologize if I was part of that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I don't know

         16  what happened, but it may have been a problem in my

         17  office, but in any event it's been rescheduled.

         18                 But I do want to emphasize that

         19  everything we can do to provide for adherence to

         20  proper management of the whole system, both sides of

         21  the river, I certainly support and believe the

         22  Department feels that way, regardless of whether

         23  they feel that filtration is ultimately necessary.

         24                 But as part of a strategy of

         25  filtration avoidance, increases in penalties is
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          2  clearly part of it, and we should move ahead with

          3  that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          5  you, Council Member Koppell.

          6                 One last comment. We've talked about

          7  the penalties and increasing those penalties, but

          8  the City's ability, one thing we also want to change

          9  is the City's ability to stop the non-compliant

         10  behavior right away by having a better standard for

         11  injunctive relief, which I had trouble getting that

         12  word over my lips. But we'll just call it IR from

         13  now on, all right? You know injunctive relief, IR.

         14  We want to change the whole IR such that we could

         15  stop the offending behavior right way, because now I

         16  understand as long as people stop within five days,

         17  they can -- you know, as long as they stop within

         18  five days, they're okay, so they don't have to stop

         19  right away and they don't have to pay a penalty; is

         20  that what exists now? And does DEP support change in

         21  that paradigm or whatever?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: I'm

         23  really unable to comment in any more detail about

         24  our desires for changing the standard for injunctive

         25  relief.
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          2                 One of the questions in the

          3  information request we got from your Counsel was in

          4  how many of the -- in what number of the NOVs that

          5  we've issued have we sought injunctive relief to

          6  compel the respondent to cure the violation.

          7                 I don't know what that number is, so

          8  I'm not going to hazard a guess.

          9                 And I'm not prepared to articulate

         10  what kind of standard, if any, we're going to

         11  propose for change, in terms of injunctive relief.

         12  But we're definitely considering the issue, and we

         13  have a question before us.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         15                 It sounded to me like they're on our

         16  side. I don't know, that's what I got out of it.

         17                 So, thanks very much. I appreciate

         18  your being here today. Thanks for your testimony.

         19  It's always very good to see all of you. Please give

         20  my best wishes to the Commissioner and all of the

         21  good people back at the DEP. Thanks very much.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Thank

         23  you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The next witness

         25  will be Richard Muller, representing Manhattan
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          2  Borough President C. Virginia Fields.

          3                 We're very happy to have you with us

          4  today, Richard.

          5                 Thank you for being here.

          6                 Donna will jump you through the hoop,

          7  and then please state your name for the record and

          8  proceed with your testimony.

          9                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         10  right hand.

         11                 In the testimony that you're about to

         12  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         13  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         14                 MR. MULLER: I do.

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         17  you, Richard.

         18                 Please state your name for the record

         19  and proceed with your testimony, which I have.

         20                 MR. MULLER: Good afternoon, Mr.

         21  Chairman, members of the Committee, Committee staff.

         22  My name is Richard Muller, and I'm pleased to

         23  deliver the comments of Manhattan Borough President

         24  C. Virginia Fields on Resolution 575.

         25                 Borough President Fields supports
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          2  this resolution which calls on the New York State

          3  Legislature to amend the public health law so as to

          4  bring its enforcement provisions in line with the

          5  Environmental Conservation Law and the federal Safe

          6  Drinking Water Act.

          7                 The Commissioner of the Department of

          8  Environmental Protection bears the awesome

          9  responsibility of protecting this essential

         10  resource. He must have enforcement powers

         11  commensurate with that mandate.

         12                 He must have the power of immediate

         13  injunction against polluters and potential and

         14  repeat violators of the Watershed Protection Rules

         15  and Regulations, must no longer be able to consider

         16  fines of $200 as just another cost of doing

         17  business.

         18                 Witness after witness in the hearing

         19  on the draft filtration avoidance determination

         20  raised the glaring deficiencies of the enforcement

         21  provisions in the public health law.

         22                 Borough President Fields joins the

         23  Council, joins with the Council in calling on the

         24  State Legislature to give the protectors of our

         25  precious water supply the power to do their job.
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          2                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          3  comment.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          5  much. I know we can always count on the Borough

          6  President to support us in these critical

          7  environmental battles and she has always been and

          8  always will continue to be a great friend of the

          9  environment and a great champion of the New York

         10  City's water supply.

         11                 So, please give her our best wishes,

         12  and Donna, let's chalk this off in the win column

         13  here. Put this in the good pile. Okay.

         14                 MR. MULLER: Thank you very much, Mr.

         15  Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         17  much, Richard. Appreciate having you.

         18                 And next, we wish to call Cathleen

         19  Breen of NYPIRG.

         20                 Always a pleasure to have the people

         21  from NYPIRG here. Great champions on behalf of the

         22  environment and other progressive causes, and its

         23  made all the more special when the representative of

         24  NYPIRG is not only a great champion for the

         25  environment but a personal friend.
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          2                 So, Cathleen, thank you very much for

          3  being here.

          4                 That doesn't mean we're not going to

          5  swear you in. We're still going to do that, but

          6  thanks for being here.

          7                 Donna will give the oath, and please

          8  state your name for the record and proceed with your

          9  testimony.

         10                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

         11  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

         12  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         13  truth?

         14                 MS. BREEN: I do.

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         16                 MS. BREEN: Cathleen Breen, New York

         17  Public Interest Research Group.

         18                 Thank you very much for the

         19  opportunity to comment today. My comments will be

         20  brief as well.

         21                 I'm the Watershed Protection

         22  Coordinator for NYPIRG and just a brief history of

         23  what NYPIRG is, although the Chairman did such a

         24  gracious of describing us. We're the state's largest

         25  environmental consumer good government and
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          2  Environmental Protection Agency.

          3                 NYPIRG is also a signatory to the

          4  1997 memorandum of agreement, the Watershed

          5  Agreement, and we are a member of the Watershed

          6  Protection and Partnership Council, and I have a

          7  seat on that Council.

          8                 We're very much supportive of the

          9  Reso 575 today. I'm not going to read directly from

         10  the very brief comment, but just to say that the

         11  protection of the New York City watershed is

         12  something that we've been focusing on for a very

         13  long time and continue to focus extensively on.

         14                 You mentioned earlier about the

         15  injunctive relief being, you know, the stop orders,

         16  we're very supportive of that, as we are of raising

         17  the penalty minimum from $200, which is as was

         18  stated earlier by others, merely becomes a cost of

         19  doing the business, and it's not a deterrent that we

         20  would hope to have seen in the Watershed Rules and

         21  Regulations.

         22                 You mentioned earlier I think in your

         23  introduction about the incarceration being a

         24  deterrent. I'm hardpressed to think of a case, or

         25  it's come to that. So, at best they have just the
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          2  penalty.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, sure.

          4  Absolutely.

          5                 MS. BREEN: And no matter how

          6  egregious it is, the violation, it seems to be just

          7  a $200 penalty and that's outrageous when you're

          8  talking about the water system that supplies 1.3

          9  billion gallons a day to overnight a half million

         10  people. So, we are very supportive of Resolution

         11  575, and even as a member of the WPPC, we advocated

         12  as well there for amendments to the public health

         13  law to bring this violation criteria into line with,

         14  as you mentioned earlier, with the Environmental

         15  Conservation law, where they can go up to $25,000,

         16  which although when you're talking about

         17  multi-million dollar homes being built in the

         18  watershed, that may, too, seem like a drop in the

         19  bucket, but at least it's a lot better than $200.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Absolutely.

         21  Absolutely.

         22                 I'm wondering, just thinking out loud

         23  here, I guess it would be, what Committee over the

         24  State Legislature would have jurisdiction over this?

         25  Would it be the State Health Committee? I guess the
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          2  Senate and the Assembly Health Committees, right?

          3  They would be the ones that would have jurisdiction

          4  over this? Would it be run out of Conservation,

          5  would it be Health?

          6                 MS. BREEN: I'm not sure. I would

          7  imagine it would be public health law so it would be

          8  the Health Committee.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         10                 MS. BREEN: But I'm sure, we'll all be

         11  aware of that soon, in terms of presenting it to the

         12  legislature.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Maybe to make it

         14  easier on them we should just write the bill

         15  ourselves and give it to them.

         16                 MS. BREEN: It's always an option that

         17  we agree to.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The Counsel to

         19  the Committee, Donna DeCostanzo, was doing an

         20  admirable job of trying to give me kind of a

         21  complicated thought to sort of pass onto you in the

         22  form of a question.

         23                 I'm going to throw it back to her and

         24  ask her to ask the question, but not before I

         25  recognize the presence of Council Member Jennings
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          2  from Queens, also a member of the Committee. Nice to

          3  have you here today.

          4                 So, staff has a question.

          5                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: I just wanted to ask

          6  about the Environmental Conservation law.

          7                 I know there are certain provisions

          8  probably in the ECL that might mirror the provision

          9  in the watershed rules and regulations, but are you

         10  aware of any instances where there are provisions in

         11  the watershed rules and regulations that are not

         12  actually in the ECL so the DEC couldn't even enforce

         13  such provisions in the watershed?

         14                 MS. BREEN: I'll tell you, I'm not an

         15  attorney, I'm a scientist, so I would defer to my

         16  counsel.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I always say

         18  that.

         19                 MS. BREEN: I know you're a scientist

         20  too. So, I would always defer to Counsel in being

         21  asked clearly specifically about provisions such as

         22  that.

         23                 We'll get that answer to you, but I'm

         24  going to hold off and give that to you at some other

         25  point.
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Okay, sure.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm actually

          4  giving some serious thought to writing this and

          5  presenting it, so we'll keep in touch on that,

          6  because I think this is a critically important

          7  issue, and I'd like to pass it on to the appropriate

          8  folks in the State Legislature when we pass this

          9  resolution.

         10                 MS. BREEN: I'd just like to add that

         11  I know the watershed Inspector General whose letter

         12  you stated earlier was introduced has done a lot of

         13  research and work on the watershed rules and

         14  regulations, and where changes need to be made and

         15  it would be a good source of information when you go

         16  to write the amendments.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great. He's

         18  always been a vital resource and will continue to

         19  be.

         20                 Cathleen, thank you very much for

         21  coming. I appreciate your presence here today and

         22  your continuing good work on behalf of the

         23  watershed.

         24                 MS. BREEN: Well, thank you. And we

         25  really appreciate the Council taking up this
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          2  important issue.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thanks a lot.

          4                 We're just going to recess for about

          5  one minute while we have sort of like a little

          6  strategy session here.

          7                 (Recess taken.)

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We have three

          9  people on a panel. Each will give their testimony in

         10  turn and then at the end we'll have questions or

         11  comments for all three.

         12                 So the panel will consist of Arnold

         13  Frogel. Am I saying that right? Arnold Frogel of the

         14  Sierra Club. David Ferguson of the CWCWC. And Fay

         15  Muir of the same organization, the Croton Watershed

         16  Clean Water Coalition, that's CWCWC.

         17                 So, if the three members of the panel

         18  could take their places.

         19                 Okay, so what we'll do is Donna will

         20  provide the oath. Everyone will be sworn in at once.

         21  And then we'll take testimony one at a time. I guess

         22  starting from David and going that way, and before

         23  each one starts the testimony just please state your

         24  name for the record.

         25                 I want to thank you very much for
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          2  your patience, for your willingness to be here today

          3  and give us the benefit of your good views.

          4                 So, if everyone could raise their

          5  right hand, Donna will administer their oath and

          6  then we'll proceed with the testimony.

          7                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

          8  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

          9  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         10  truth?

         11                 MS. MUIR: Yes.

         12                 MR. FERGUSON: I do.

         13                 MR. FROGEL: I do.

         14                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

         16  much. Please state your name for the record, David,

         17  and proceed with your testimony.

         18                 MR. FERGUSON: Okay, my name is David

         19  Ferguson.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And also, if

         21  anyone has copies of their testimony, you can supply

         22  those copies to the Sergeant. If you don't have

         23  copies of your written testimony, then we're all

         24  ears.

         25                 MR. FERGUSON: Okay. I'm David
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          2  Ferguson. I represent the Croton Watershed Clean

          3  Water Coalition, and our member group is the HDFC

          4  Council, which is a tenant-sponsored housing group

          5  co-ops throughout the City, and we pay water rates

          6  and that's how I get here.

          7                 We certainly support the Intro. 575.

          8  It's long overdue, as people have commented.

          9                 I noticed that the DEP had said that

         10  they had some success with the lower figure. I think

         11  the higher figure is, they want to change the

         12  behavior, and if you had a higher figure, I think

         13  you would maybe discourage some people that the DEP

         14  didn't actually get to, but that they would be

         15  afraid they might get to them, and it would be more

         16  of a preventive measure.

         17                 It's an extremely serious matter, the

         18  construction when most -- a huge amount of damage

         19  can be done and has been done to our water supply in

         20  the past.

         21                 One thing that does concern us is the

         22  vagueness of the wording here as to the amount. It's

         23  left open. And what would be a significant deterrent

         24  under this current circumstances where the amounts

         25  of money, developments that we're dealing with every
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          2  day in the watershed are huge, so that the cost of

          3  business, before you began to really hurt their cost

          4  of business, the bottom line, you'd have to arrive

          5  at a figure, and I hope that figure is significant.

          6                 I mention just lastly that we just

          7  came from a meeting last night of up in North

          8  Castle, and it concerned a huge proposed project,

          9  the expansion of the NBIA facilities on the Kensico,

         10  which is our main reservoir and it's not the Croton,

         11  which is one of our main concerns. But we're very

         12  concerned and have been about the Kensico. And this

         13  project is 500 feet from the Kensico which supplies

         14  90 percent of our water, and if this construction

         15  project goes forward, the amount of money behind it

         16  is considerable, and that any kind of damage that

         17  could be done to our main reservoir that supplies 90

         18  percent of our water would be significant. So that

         19  this is like a test case if, in fact, this project

         20  which many of us feel is an unwide project all

         21  together.

         22                 And I just also, there are many other

         23  issues that I won't get into. One of them, though,

         24  did come up and I will mention, if I may, the fact

         25  that the NBIA assembled the rest of their parcel by
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          2  buying the small homeowners, they bought 14 of 17,

          3  they have three to go, these are small parcels that

          4  the watershed agreement did not allow the City to

          5  purchase, and the EPA has been after us for years to

          6  protect the Croton out of Kensico, more than we

          7  have. That's the one place in the CatDel that

          8  they're really concerned about, with good reason.

          9  It's a very small watershed about 13 square miles,

         10  and every bit of protection that we can get, we

         11  need, so that that's a circumstance that I feel is,

         12  I don't know what we can do at this point, but I

         13  thought I would raise it and since that partial is

         14  assembled, ideally it would be great now that it's

         15  probably large enough for DEP to buy. It would cost

         16  a lot, no doubt, but so would a filtration plant

         17  because if one reservoir goes, the $2.2 billion

         18  we've spent so far to protect the, mainly the

         19  CatDel, and to avoid a 6 to 8 billion dollar plant

         20  would go down the tubes. At any point the EPA can

         21  say, okay, guy, you have to build it, so we have a

         22  lot at stake in this. And I think this is good for,

         23  as Councilman Koppell said, also for those of us

         24  that feel that filtration is not a good alternative

         25  for the Croton.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

          4  David. I appreciate your testimony. I'll get back to

          5  you. I've got a question on something you said. Once

          6  we finish with the panel, we'll do them all at once.

          7                 MS. MUIR: My name is Faye Muir. I'm

          8  also with the Croton Watershed Clean Water

          9  Coalition, and I would support having the fines

         10  increased. I think not only is it a deterrent and a

         11  means of changing behavior, but it's also a way of

         12  creating an environment where the kinds of

         13  development that we wish to happen occur in the

         14  watershed, and those that are not able to fulfill

         15  those requirements to protect the water will not

         16  want to do business there, and this we would

         17  definitely encourage.

         18                 And I'd like to also thank the

         19  members of the Council that mentioned that they

         20  would like to see filtration avoidance, and I would

         21  love to see this extended to include the areas east

         22  of the Croton, as well.

         23                 The DEP is always saying in order to

         24  protect the Croton, you know, what can they do?

         25  Well, heres an excellent example of what you can do:
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          2  If you raise fines for those, especially in the east

          3  of the Croton area where you have more commercial

          4  and industrial development, and where this is more

          5  likely to occur, then you know, that would

          6  definitely not just be a cost of doing business,

          7  and, you know, they just continue as usual.

          8                 I would also like to see this change

          9  in behavior include the extensive education and

         10  incentive programs that are being done on the west

         11  of the Hudson as well.

         12                 And I'd also like to see, in addition

         13  to the fine, some kind of remediation being asked of

         14  whoever is doing this, because that would also be a

         15  deterrent to know that in addition to doing, to

         16  paying for creating a problem, they would also have

         17  to do something about it and take care of the

         18  damage.

         19                 So, thank you for the opportunity to

         20  comment.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         22  you. I'm very grateful that you can be here today. I

         23  appreciate it.

         24                 Mr. Frogel, correct?

         25                 MR. FROGEL: Correct. Name is Arnold
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          2  Frogel. I'm with the Sierra Club, the New York City

          3  group. I live on the west side of Manhattan in the

          4  Penn South Development. We receive Croton water in

          5  our development. So, I'm very much concerned that

          6  this resolution should also be covering Croton.

          7                 And I fully support the statements of

          8  the previous two speakers, I think that the fines,

          9  an increase in the penalties would substantially

         10  support the funding, greater funding that is needed

         11  to protect the watershed as well as to educate

         12  people about their importance, so that people know

         13  that the water that comes out of their tap is not

         14  the only thing they should be concerned about. They

         15  should be concerned about the source of that water,

         16  and water should be protected at its source.

         17                 The injunctive relief would certainly

         18  be appropriate if it's immediate, if the five days

         19  is just too long. It has to be preventative, that's

         20  all.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, sir.

         23  Thank you for making your views known here, views

         24  that you're showing indoors, and I guess by

         25  extension I'd like to thank the Sierra Club for all
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          2  the good work that they do, and you make my job a

          3  lot easier by putting these issues out in the public

          4  mind, and, so, I'm always grateful for the

          5  participation, you know, Sierra, and our issues here

          6  today.

          7                 Let me just make a couple of

          8  questions and comments regarding the testimony.

          9                 David, I made a note and I can't

         10  figure out what I meant by it. Oh, yes, you said

         11  amounts, and I'm thinking what do I mean by

         12  "amounts." I mean by that, because you had

         13  indicated that the resolution is not specific when

         14  it comes to the amounts that we would impose of new

         15  penalties, and I'd like to, you know, hold the

         16  opportunity for you either now or on the record or

         17  after the fact, you know, with Donna or myself,

         18  please feel free, you and your organization, to kind

         19  of weigh in on what you believe would be

         20  inappropriate, sort of penalty structure.

         21                 MR. FERGUSON: Right off the top of my

         22  head, I certainly don't want to name a number. You

         23  really have to, I think, because I am in more

         24  detail, the various elements that would go into

         25  making that up.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. I just

          3  want to hold open that opportunity for you.

          4                 MR. FERGUSON: We will discuss it with

          5  our group, and come back to you with what we think

          6  might be a good figure.

          7                 I think the figure might prove to be

          8  somewhat of an issue at the WPPC when it gets right

          9  down to it, and so I think that all the support we

         10  can get for the better, more productive or water

         11  quality figure, the better it is.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. We'd be

         13  happy for your participation, because I really feel

         14  strongly about this, and I want to do this with my

         15  partners, that's you guys.

         16                 MR. FERGUSON: We're very appreciative

         17  of that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And Mr. Frogel,

         19  with regard to the east of Hudson, if the resolution

         20  passes and it helps to spur the State to do action

         21  and to increase the penalties, they would indeed

         22  imply to east of Hudson and the Croton system, as

         23  well as west of Hudson.

         24                 MR. FROGEL: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So both the
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          2  resolution and the ultimate state legislation and

          3  new fee structure were, if one were to be enacted,

          4  would, you know, cover the area that you would

          5  measure would be Catskill and Croton.

          6                 I think David has a comment.

          7                 MR. FERGUSON: Yes. We did notice in

          8  the wording the word "Croton" wasn't mentioned, if

          9  I'm correct. I'm not sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, in the

         11  resolution? Oh, okay.

         12                 MR. FROGEL: We want no

         13  misunderstanding about that. It has to be written

         14  out. It has to be in black and white.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. The

         16  Resolution, legal counsel has informed me that the

         17  resolution applies to the entire watershed.

         18                 MR. FERGUSON: Right. As I read it, it

         19  was my understanding, but nevertheless, it does show

         20  the focus on the CatDel, and it's not a critical

         21  point, but it's something that those of us --

         22  because we feel like the stepchild here, you know,

         23  in the Croton. We're trying to effect the whole

         24  system, that's why we're fighting for the Kensico

         25  and one of our groups is in West of Hudson, the
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          2  Catskill Heritage Alliance. So, we're universally

          3  trying to protect the water supply and we feel that

          4  the Croton system is the battle now, it's the

          5  Czechoslovakia for the future.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's a

          7  metaphor.

          8                 And I just want to also state for the

          9  record that I mentioned kind of quickly before that

         10  we did get testimony from the EPA supporting what

         11  we're doing. We got this little, it's this little

         12  letter right here from EPA, and from Jim Tierney of

         13  the State AG's office. We've got his statement in

         14  support right here. And we're just going to state

         15  for the record, and Jeff Baker on behalf of the

         16  Coalition of Watershed Towns has testimony in

         17  opposition to 575, and Watershed Protection and

         18  Partnership Council, they have called for an

         19  increase in penalty as one of their priority

         20  recommendations for MOA programs in their five-year

         21  review, so they're on board. And I believe we have a

         22  letter here from, yes we do, from the New York State

         23  Department of Health is onboard as well. So, with

         24  increasing penalties.

         25                 So, we're getting Mr. Tramontano on
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          2  behalf of Environmental Health --

          3                 MR. FERGUSON: He's on the WPPC.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We've got Ron.

          5  So we have inner broad support for it, and, you

          6  know, DEP is being a little careful here today, but

          7  we do have the Commissioner on the record.

          8                 MR. FERGUSON: And we hope they'll be

          9  as careful in the future in protecting the water

         10  too.

         11                 I also would just like to mention in

         12  passing, I notice that Cathleen had mentioned that

         13  Jim Tierney is the Attorney General, Inspector

         14  General, has done a terrific job, and he really

         15  helped tremendously in stopping Trump from building

         16  one of his golf courses that would have had a

         17  tremendously negative impact on the new Croton

         18  Reservoir, so among other things.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: He's a great

         20  resource and the people of New York State are lucky

         21  to have him, you know, acting on their behalf.

         22                 MR. FERGUSON: I remember when he

         23  first took the job at a meeting, he was interviewed

         24  at the City Club and he had said that he asked when

         25  he was offered the job, is this a real job? And he
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          2  said yes, and he's made it one, so...

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It is one of

          4  those jobs where it is what you make it. He's very

          5  earnest and has done a great job and we're certainly

          6  appreciative of his efforts. And we're also very

          7  appreciative to have you all here today, and we

          8  thank you very much for your comments.

          9                 MR. FERGUSON: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'd like to

         11  recognize the presence of Bob Muldoon, from the

         12  Sierra Club. We thank you for your efforts on behalf

         13  of this issue, and many issues that you champion.

         14                 I guess no one else wishing to be

         15  heard, thank you all very much, and the meeting is

         16  adjourned.

         17                 MR. FERGUSON: Thank you.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 3:40 p.m.)
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